
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

v. CR NO. 10-773M (JMF)

 
CHRISTOPHER MEDOVICH,

Defendant.

DETENTION MEMORANDUM

This matter comes before me upon the application of the United States that the defendant 

be detained pending trial.  After a hearing, the government=s motion was granted, and this

memorandum is submitted to comply with the statutory obligation that Athe judicial officer

shallCinclude written findings of fact and a written statement of the reasons for the detention.@

18 U.S.C. ' 3142(i)(1).

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. On August On August 18, 2010, Detective Timothy Palchak with the

Washington, D.C. Metropolitan Police Department, acting in an undercover

capacity in conjunction with Special Agent Jenny Cutalo-Patterson of the Federal

Bureau of Investigation, engaged in an on-line conversation with the defendant in

a Yahoo chat room.

2. Using the screen name “gatormedic08," the defendant asked the detective whether

he wanted to trade photographs and then sent him a picture of a prepubescent
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female child lying nude on her back while being vaginally penetrated by an adult penis.

3. The defendant then told the detective that he was sexually active with his wife’s

daughter, who was 7 years old, and with his own daughter, who was 5 years old.

4. The defendant explained to the detective that he would drug the girls using

Benadryl and then commit sexual acts on them.  The defendant also sent the

detective approximately six pictures of young children whom he described as his

daughters.  

5. The defendant also suggested that the detective meet him and his daughters in a

remote scenic area where the girls could chat and then they could engage in

sexual acts.

6. The defendant again chatted with the detective on-line on August 19, 2010. 

During that conversation, the defendant stated that he performed oral sex on his

step daughter after drugging her with Benadryl, and that she would do anything

he asked her to.

7. The defendant then told the detective that he was away from home on business

but would be returning in December.  The FBI later learned that the defendant,

who lived in Hancock, Maryland and served in the Army reserves, had been

deployed to Kuwait at the time of his August on-line conversations with the

detective. 

REASONS FOR DETENTION

Eligibility

The government seeks the defendant=s pre-trial detention pursuant to 18 U.S.C. '

3142(f)(1)(E), which authorizes the pre-trial detention of a defendant who, like this defendant, is
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charged with a crime that involves a minor victim.  In this case, the defendant is charged with

knowingly receiving and distributing, via interstate commerce, materials, the production of

which involved the use of a minor engaging in sexually explicit conduct and which visual

depiction was of such conduct, in violation of 18 U.S.C. ' 2252(a)(2). 

Pertinent Factors

 In determining whether there are conditions of release which will reasonably assure the

appearance of the defendant in court as required and the safety of the community the court is to

consider:

1. The nature and circumstances of the offense charged, including whether the  offense is a
crime of violence or involves a narcotic drug;

2. The weight of the evidence;

3. The history and characteristics of the person, including

a. His character, physical and mental condition, family ties, employment, financial
resources, length of residence in the community and community ties;

b. Past conduct, history relating to drug or alcohol abuse;

c. Criminal history;

d. Record concerning appearance at court proceedings;

e. Whether, at the time of the current offense or arrest, the person was on probation,
parole, or on other release pending trial, sentencing, appeal or completion of
sentence for an offense under Federal, State or local law. 

18 U.S.C. ' 3142.

Analysis

An analysis of these factors compels the conclusion that the defendant should be

detained.  

The nature and circumstances of the offense charged, including whether the offense
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is a crime of violence or involves a narcotic drug.  Under the Bail Reform Act, any felony

listed under 18 U.S.C. ' 2251 et seq. is classified as a crime of violence.  The charge against the

defendant therefore is a crime a violence.  See U.S. v. Schenberger, 498 F. Supp. 2d 738, 741

(D.N.J. 2007).

Defendant’s character, physical and mental condition, family ties, employment,

financial resources, and length of residence in the community.  The defendant was born in

Florida and has lived for the past two years in the Washington DC area.  He is married and lives

with his wife and her stepdaughter.  He also has a daughter of his own, who lives with her

mother.  As noted above, he is a member of the U.S. Army Reserves and was stationed in

Kuwait for most of 2010.

The weight of the evidence.  The weight of the evidence is substantial.  Over a two day

period, the defendant engaged in on-line conversations with an undercover detective.  The

defendant offered to and actually did transmit a picture of a prepubescent girl lying on her back

nude and being vaginally penetrated with an adult penis.  The defendant also suggested that he

and the undercover detective meet and indicated that he would let the undercover officer perform

sexual acts on his daughters.  

History relating to drug or alcohol abuse and record concerning appearance at

court proceedings and prior criminal record.  There is no information available as to this

factor.

Whether on probation or parole at the time of the present offense.  The defendant has

no prior criminal record.

Conclusion

The facts of this case are horrifying.  The defendant, believing that he was talking to
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someone as perverted as himself, explained how he drugged his own children to perform acts

upon them that are unquestionably horrible crimes in themselves.  He then offered to use his own

children and the child of the man to whom he was talking for additional sexual gratification. 

This defendant presents a self evident danger to all children and especially his own.

I am told that I should find, on the basis of a ten minute hearing, that defendant was

merely fantasizing about what he had done to his children and that the children were not really

endangered.  I do not understand why I am to take comfort in the fact that a father gratifies his

sexual desires by imaging performing sexual acts on his children after he has drugged them.  In

either instance, he presents a most obvious and clear danger to all children.  I cannot find that

any condition I could impose could limit the terrible risk he presents to the children in any

community in which he would live.

I, therefore, conclude that there are no conditions I could set that would reasonably

assure this defendant=s appearance or that the would not commit new crimes if released and that

he should be detained pending trial. 

                                                                         
                               _______________________

JOHN M. FACCIOLA
UNITED STATES MAGISTRATE JUDGE
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